
Workforce Panel  
 

Dear Member, 
 

You are invited to attend the meeting of the Workforce Panel to be held as follows for 
the transaction of the business indicated. 
David Wilcock 

Monitoring Officer 

 
DATE: Tuesday, 28 September 2021 

 
TIME:  11.30 am 

 
VENUE: Salford Suite, Salford Civic Centre, Chorley Road, Swinton 

 
In accordance with ‘The Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations 
2014,’ the press and public have the right to film, video, photograph or record 

this meeting.  
 

AGENDA 

 
1   Apologies for Absence  

 

 

2   Declarations of Interest  

 

 

3   Minutes of the Meeting held on 25th May 2021  

 
(Pages 1 - 2) 

4   Workforce Equality, Diversity and Inclusion Strategy  

 
(Pages 3 - 24) 

5   Exclusion of the Public (PART 2)  

 

The officers consider that the following items contain exempt 

information as provided for in the Local Government Access to 
Information Act and that the public interest in maintaining the 
exemption outweighs the public interest in disclosing the information. 

Members are recommended to agree the necessary resolutions 
excluding the public from the meeting during consideration of this 

item. At the time this agenda is published no representations have 
been received that this part of the meeting should be open to the 
public. 

 

 

6   Senior Leadership Appointments and Remuneration  

 

(Pages 25 - 40) 

 
Contact Officer: Tel No:  

Carol Eddleston E-Mail: carol.eddleston@salford.gov.uk 

Public Document Pack



This page is intentionally left blank



Workforce Panel Meeting Held on 25th May 2021 held at 2 New Bailey 

Square, New Bailey, Salford 

Meeting started at 11:30am 

Meeting ended at 11:40am 

Present in Person 

Councillors Hinds (in the chair), August, Bentham, Cammell and Lancaster.  

In Attendance in Person 

Sam Betts (Assistant Director HR & OD), Carol Eddleston (Democratic Services) and Tom Stannard 

(Chief Executive). 

 

1. Apologies for Absence 

Apologies for absence were submitted on behalf of City Mayor Paul Dennett and Councillors Kelly, 
McCusker, Merry and Turner. 

2. Declarations of Interest 

There were no declarations of interest. 

3. Minutes of the Meeting Held on 23rd February 2021 

The minutes of the meeting held on 23rd February 2021 were approved as a correct record. 

4. Senior Leadership Appointments 

Councillor Hinds, Lead Member for Finance and Support Services, invited the Assistant Director HR & 

OD to present the report which set out the arrangements for the recruitment, selection and 

appointment to the vacant posts of Strategic Director Place and the City Solicitor, a post which also 
carried the statutory role of Monitoring Officer. 

The Assistant Director HR & OD explained that the Strategic Director for Place carried the leadership 

responsibility and accountability across a range of services and disciplines including operational 

services such as street scene and parks, Vehicle Management Services and Citywide together with 

regulatory functions such as health and safety and environmental health. The role also carried with it 

responsibility for community safety and emergency planning as well as leading on city wide 

regeneration, development, and investment. The Place directorate played a key role for housing, 

planning and environmental policy plus infrastructure, construction, engineering, streetworks, 

planning and building control and the contract management for Salford Community Leisure.  

The City Solicitor post was established in 2015 in line with recommendations from the Audit and 

Accounts Committee to ensure that lawful decision making and governance arrangements were in 

place. The City Solicitor was also the statutory Monitoring Officer for the Council. The Monitoring 

Officer was a statutory appointment under the provisions of Section 5 of the Local Government and 

Housing Act 1989. In addition to the statutory Monitoring Officer responsibilities and chief legal 

adviser role, the post holder was responsible for a range of services within the legal and governance 

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



division which would include democratic services (including elections), Coroners, Registrars and  
client management for the shared legal service with Manchester City Council. 

Any review and changes to one of the statutory roles would in relative terms impact on the other 

statutory post and therefore automatically prompt a review of the role of Chief F inance Officer. 

Since 2017, when the role was established in its current form, it had been operating in practice as 

the Chief Finance Officer with the statutory responsibilities as the Section 151 and not solely the 

Assistant Director for Finance. Therefore, to ensure roles, responsibilities and level of accountability 

reflected the current operation of the role, and in line with normal practice, a review of this role had 

also been undertaken. The full details of the roles and responsibilities for the post together with the 

main statutory references for the Chief Finance Officer functions were set out in the revised role 
profile. 

In line with the Council Constitution, the Council made determinations in relation to the 

remuneration of posts whose remuneration was, or would become, £100,000 per annum or above. 

As the salary ranges exceeded £100,000 Council must therefore be offered the opportunity to 

consider the salaries before the salary package was offered in respect of a new appointment. 
Therefore, a separate report on this matter would go to Council in July 2021. 

RESOLVED, THAT: 

1. The Workforce Panel agree the membership of the Appointment Panel(s) for the posts of 

Strategic Director Place and City Solicitor (Monitoring Officer).  

 

2. The Appointment Panel(s) be delegated to agree the final details of the recruitment and 

selection arrangements as follows: -  

(a) Agree the role profiles.  

(b) Agree an external recruitment approach.  

(c) Agree the detail of the selection process.  

(d) Agree the use of external executive search and support for the process.  

(e) Appoint a suitable candidate and notify Cabinet Members allowing any objections to the 
offer to the City Mayor.  

3.  Following the selection of a suitable candidate for the City Solicitor (Monitoring Officer) post 

the Appointment Panel make a recommendation to approve their appointment to full 
Council.  

4.  The Workforce Panel agree to recommend to full Council the proposals relating to the 

remuneration of the Chief Officer posts referred to in this report. 

 

Page 2



 1 

Part 1: Open to the Public – Item No. 

 

REPORT OF  

Assistant Director for Human Resources and Organisational 
Development 

 

TO 
Workforce Panel 

ON  
28th September 2021

 

TITLE: Workforce Equality, Diversity and Inclusion Strategy 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS: 
 

That Workforce Panel: 
 

 Considers and approves the Workforce Equality, Diversity, and Inclusion 

Strategy. 

 Note the plans for a launch event in October 2021 for the Salford Equality 

Strategy and the Workforce Equality, Diversity, and Inclusion Strategy. 

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 
This report sets out a Workforce Equality, Diversity, and Inclusion (EDI) Strategy 

which has been developed based on feedback over a period of time from a range of 
stakeholders including discussions with staff equality groups, the joint trade unions, 

the Salford 100 staff engagement network, senior leaders and elected members.  
 

 

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS: 
Workforce Equality, Diversity and Inclusion Strategy (Appendix 2) 

 

KEY DECISION: NO 

 

DETAILS: 
 

Page 3

Agenda Item 4



 2 

1. Background 
 

In line with Salford City Councils equality objectives, the Council is committed to 

building and sustaining an inclusive workplace for all, where people feel valued, 
included, and have the opportunity to be heard, as well as opportunities to develop.  

 

The Council’s vision is to develop an inclusive culture where all individuals are 
respected and treated fairly, where diversity is celebrated and where everyone 

regardless of background can reach their full potential. The development of the 
Workforce Equality, Diversity and Inclusion Strategy sets out this vision and 

commitment in more detail.  
 

2. Workforce Inclusion Strategy 

 
Salford is becoming increasingly ethnically and culturally diverse and it is vital that 

the workforce understand and engage with our different communities to provide 
effective services for all. Salford is a place for everyone to thrive, a place where 
everyone cares, and everyone counts, and we are committed to creating 'a great 

place to work.’  
 
The Council strives to be an exemplar employer in Salford by fostering a positive and 

inclusive workplace environment that recognises, welcomes, and supports a diverse 
workforce that reflects the population.  It is important that the Council is viewed as an 

equitable, accessible, and welcoming organisation where people want to work and 
progress.    
 

In 2019, the Council updated its equality objectives and committed to building and 
sustaining and inclusive working environment for all. The development of the 

Workforce EDI strategy provides further details of the Councils vision and ambitions 
as an employer and priorities for the future to achieve this vision.  
 

The Workforce EDI strategy has been developed based on feedback from a range of 
key stakeholders over the last 12 months in many different forums. This has included 

the workforce and in particular the established staff groups, trade union 
representatives, and senior leaders. The strategy is also closely aligned to the City 
Equality strategy as almost 60% of the Council workforce are also residents in the 

city.  
 

The draft Workforce EDI strategy has been shared with those who have contributed 
including staff equality groups, trade union representatives, leadership teams and 
Corporate Management Team to ensure the final version has captured and reflects 

all feedback. 
 

There are four priority areas within the draft strategy which are as follows  
1. Actively developing our leaders. 
2. Improving Education, awareness, and training. 

3. Improving workforce intelligence, insight, and representation. 
4. Reducing the gender and ethnicity pay gaps. 

 

Page 4



 3 

Within each of the priority areas there are a number of areas of focus and more in-
depth actions plans will be co-developed with the workforce to ensure delivery of 
these priorities. 
 

3. Launch event  

 
To reinforce the city’s existing diversity and our commitment to achieving lasting 
inclusion once the strategy has been agreed, aligned with the wider council equality 

strategy, we are developing a public launch for both strategies on 20th October 
4.30pm to 5.30pm.  

 
The run up to the event and launch itself will be supported by the communications 
team, ensuring there is wide promotion of the event across the council, Salford’s 

communities, VCSE sector and partners.   

KEY COUNCIL POLICIES:  
 The Salford Way 

 

EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS: 
An impact assessment for the strategy is currently being developed alongside the 
draft strategy however, individual impact assessment screenings and assessments 

for each key area of work will be undertaken, as and when required. 

 

ASSESSMENT OF RISK: Low 

 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: TBC

 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: N/A

 

PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: N/A 
 

HR IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: Contained within the body of the report.  

 

CLIMATE CHANGE IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: n/a  

 

OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED: 

 

Page 5

https://www.salford.gov.uk/your-council/the-salford-way/


 4 

CONTACT OFFICER: Catherine Sharples, Strategic HR and OD Manager   

 

WARDS TO WHICH REPORT RELATES: All 
 

Page 6



 

 

 

Workforce Equality, Diversity and Inclusion 

Strategy 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Version 1 
August 2021 

 

 

P
age 7



 

 

 

Salford City Council’s vision is to 
develop an inclusive culture where all 
individuals are respected and treated fairly, 
where diversity is celebrated and where 
everyone, regardless of background, can 
reach their full potential. 
 

 

 

P
age 8



 

Introduction 

We are pleased to present Salford City 

Council’s Workforce Equality, Diversity and 

Inclusion Strategy. This strategy supports our 

vision of developing an inclusive culture where 
individuals are respected and treated fairly, 

where diversity is celebrated and where 

everyone regardless of background can reach 

their full potential. 
 
To deliver our Great Eight priorities and the city’s broader 
Salford Equality Strategy, we need to have a workforce that is 

truly reflective of the communities and residents that we 
serve. Salford is becoming increasingly ethnically and 
culturally diverse and it is vital that our workforce understands 

and engages with our different communities and our residents 
see themselves represented in the services we provide.  
 

Salford is a place for everyone to thrive, where everyone 
cares and counts and we want Salford City Council to be 'a 
great place to work.’ 

 
Through this Workforce Equality, Diversity and Inclusion 
strategy, the Salford Equality Strategy, our council Equality 

Objectives and our council values we are committed to 
building and sustaining a diverse and inclusive workplace 

where all of our people feel valued and included, have the 

opportunity to be heard, as well as opportunities to develop. 
We want to continue developing a culture which respects and 
trusts individuals and where everyone feels able to fully 
contribute and be their whole self when at work.  

We know the pandemic has exacerbated inequalities faced by 
many people and communities and we are committed to 
tackling these.  As our city recovers from the pandemic, we 

want to ensure that equality, diversity and inclusion is at the 
heart of everything we do in Salford and our workforce is no 
exception. 

 
Though we have made progress over the years, there is still 
more work to do to create an environment where everyone 
has equal voice and opportunities to develop, irrespective of 

their age, disability, ethnicity, faith/belief, gender identity, 

race, sex, sexual identity or socio-economic background. 
 

 

 

 

 

 Cllr Sharmina August, 
Lead Member for Inclusive Economy, 
Anti-Poverty and Equalities   

 

Cllr Barbara Bentham, 

Executive Support Member for  
Workforce and Industrial Relations 

P
age 9



 

Message from Tom Stannard, Chief 

Executive 

Since taking up my post as Chief Executive at 

Salford City Council, I have been clear that 

workforce equality, diversity and inclusion is 

one of my top priorities. I talk about Salford 

being a diverse, vibrant and tolerant city and I 

believe our workforce should be the same. 

This workforce Equality, Diversity and Inclusion (EDI) strategy 

sets out for the first time our organisational vision, 

commitment and priorities which have all been developed 

through engaging and listening to our people about what is 

important to them. It is the first vital step in bringing about 

change and the building block on which we can now develop 

and deliver the right actions that have the greatest impact. 

Our workforce are critical in achieving our vision for a better 

and fairer Salford for all, and delivering our Great 8 priorities. 

In line with our values we need to create an environment 

where difference of background, experience and thought is 

welcomed and valued. I believe ongoing engagement and 

dialogue on this agenda is central to achieving our vision and 

starts with understanding people’s personal experiences and 

being brave enough to have honest and sometimes difficult 

conversations.  

Whilst EDI is the responsibility of everyone and championing 

this must happen at all levels and right across the 

organisation, I believe visible leadership is essential. The 

Corporate Management Team have been instrumental in 

developing this strategy and are firmly committed to the 

priorities outlined. I have also talked openly about my own 

personal motivation on this agenda through lived experience 

and therefore look forward to further discussions on delivering 

these priorities over the coming months. 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 10



 

Our journey so far… 

Salford City Council is passionate about diversity, inclusion, fairness 
and equality of opportunity for all and central to our approach 
remain our values of Pride, Passion, People and Personal 
Responsibility. Over the last few years, progress has been made in 
promoting a positive, diverse, and inclusive working environment 
for all. Some examples of the work we have done so far includes: 
 
 Working with our three established staff groups (BAME staff 

group, LGBTQ+ staff group, and Equal in Salford, our staff 
disability staff group) and our Trade Union representatives to 
strengthen engagement and voice and to work on the issues 
that matter.  
 

 A Black Lives Matter Champions group set up within our People 
Directorate to discuss issues and share good practice across the 
service. 

 
 Our commitment to the Greater Manchester Race Equality 

Standard to collectively work together as public sector employers 
to tackle workforce race inequality across Greater Manchester.  

 
 Working with Stonewall for the fourth consecutive year to 

improve LQBTQ+ inclusion and visibility in the workplace, which 
has seen the council ranking rise on the UK Workplace Equality 
Index 

 
 Continuing to hold disability confident status ensuring that we 

regularly assess and benchmark our practices and policies to 
ensure they are accessible and inclusive.  

 
 Setting up and engaging with our carers network has provided 

valuable insight to enable a range of guidance and support to be 
developed and SCC is also a member of Employers for Carers 

 
 Reducing our gender pay gap each year since reporting began 

and identifying targeted actions. An example within our Service 
Reform Directorate is signing up to Tech She Can Charter to 
increase the number of women working in technology roles.  

 

 Working with our Place Directorate to consider ways to improve 
engagement and representation on EDI issues across frontline 
services.  

 
 Awareness raising campaigns, education sessions and 

celebration events for the workforce have taken place recently 
(International Women’s Day, Anti-Racism Day, Trans Day of 
Visibility, International Roma Day, Ramadan, Eid al Fitr, 
IDAHOBIT, mental health awareness, cultural diversity, Gypsy 
Roma Traveller History Month, Carer’s Week, Refugee Week, 
Salford Pride, Learning Disability Week, Windrush Day, Tisha 
B’Av, Hajj & Eid al Adha, Rastafaranisim (Haile Selassie), Al-
Hijra-Islamic New Year and Manchester Pride) to raise the 
visibility of our diverse workforce and communities. 

 
Whilst we are pleased to have made progress on some key 
workforce equality, diversity and inclusion issues, we recognise 
there is more to do to bring about transformational and systemic 
change

P
age 11



 

What do we mean by workforce 

equality, diversity, inclusion and 
fairness? 

It is important that we are clear about what we mean when we 
talk about workforce equality, diversity and inclusion as well 

as an understanding of the legal context in which we operate. 

Equality in the workplace means equal opportunities and fair 

treatment for employees and job applicants regardless of any 

protected characteristics.   

Diversity is about recognising difference. It’s acknowledging 
the benefit of having a range of perspectives in decision-
making and the workforce being representative of our 
residents. 

Inclusion is where people’s differences are valued and used 
to enable everyone to thrive at work. An inclusive working 
environment is one in which everyone feels that they belong 
without having to conform, that their contribution matters and 

they are able to perform to their full potential, no matter their 
background, identity or circumstances 

Fairness does not mean treating everyone the same. It 
means treating people in line with their needs to ensure 
equality.  

Therefore, the council strives to be an exemplar employer in 
Salford by fostering a positive and inclusive workplace 

environment that recognises, welcomes and supports a 
diverse workforce that reflects the population that we serve.   

We want people to view the council as an equitable, 
accessible and welcoming organisation where they want to 
work and progress.    

Legal Context 
As a public sector organisation, Salford City Council has a duty 
to comply with the Equality Act 2010 and Public Sector 
Equality Duty (PSED).  

This means having due regard to the need to: 

• Eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any 
other conduct that is prohibited by or under this Act.  

• Advance equality of opportunity between persons who 
share a relevant protected characteristic and persons who 
do not share it.  

• Foster good relations between persons who share a 

relevant protected characteristic and persons who do not 
share it. 

The specific duties of the Equality Act 2010 also require local 
authorities to prepare and publish one or more equality 

objectives at least every four years. A central aim of 
developing such objectives is to enable local authorities to 

P
age 12



 

meet the PSED. These objectives should reflect the most 
important equality challenges for an organisation and be 
based on good evidence.  

Salford City Council renewed its Equality Objectives in 2019. 
They are: 

 Build and sustain an inclusive working environment for all 
 Better understand, and respond to, the needs of Salford’s 

diverse communities 
 Influence others through our procurement and 

commissioning, regulatory and place making activities to 

adopt positive practices. 
 Foster good relations in all our communities of identity 

Therefore, this strategy will play an important role in 
supporting delivery of the first two of these objectives.

P
age 13

https://www.salford.gov.uk/your-council/corporate-information/equality-and-cohesion/equality-objectives/


 

 

Our Workforce 
 

3,433 

people are directly employed in the 
council. 57% (1,965) of which live 
in Salford. 

8% of the council workforce 

have disclosed they are  from a 
Black, Asian or Ethnic Minority 
background (BAME). This compares 
to 14% across the Salford 
population. 87% of the workforce 
have disclosed they are White. 

3% of staff have identified as 

Lesbian, Gay or Bisexual  

 

 

The council’s mean  
gender pay gap is  
 
This is a fall of 3.2% since 
reporting began. This is lower than 
the UK mean gender pay gap of 
17.3%. 

197  
employees (6%) declared a 
disability or long-term health 
condition.  

 

56% of the workforce 

identify as Christian and 5% 
identify as having another faith - 
the largest being Muslim 2%. 

Young people continue to be 
largely under-represented in the 
council with only 1.8% of the 
workforce aged 16-24. This 
compares to 12% across Salford 

 

 

11.3% 

Source: Salford Workforce Equality Report 2017-19  
and Gender Pay Gap Report 2020/21 

 

P
age 14



 

9 
 

Our Priorities  

Our vision is to develop an inclusive culture 
where individuals are respected and treated 

fairly, where diversity is celebrated, and where 
everyone regardless of background can reach 

their full potential. 

We know there is lots to do, and this will take 

time and focus over a number of years.  

In line with the Salford Equality Strategy, 
which sets the overarching strategic 

framework for partners in the city, we will 

prioritise the following four areas based on 
what we know and feedback to date from 

various stakeholders across the organisation: 

 

 

 

 

 

1. Actively developing our leaders  

2. Building confidence through 

improving education, awareness 

and training 

3. Improving workforce intelligence, 

insight and representation 

4. Targeted interventions to 

understand and reduce gender and 

ethnicity pay gaps 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 15



 

10 
 

1. Actively developing our 
leaders 

We recognise that to build a truly inclusive workplace, leaders 
need to show visible commitment and take personal 

responsibility for making it happen. We want our leaders to 
feel confident to lead and develop diverse and inclusive hybrid 
teams and therefore need the right training and tools to be 
able to do this successfully. 

Research suggests that what leaders say and do makes up to a 
70% difference as to whether an individual reports feeling 
included at work*. The more people feel included, the more 

they engage, speak up, go the extra mile, and collaborate well 
with others. We therefore expect our leaders to hold 
themselves and others to account for their behaviours to help 
foster a positive, diverse and inclusive working environment. 

We want leaders who are role models for equality, diversity and 

inclusion, who act as allies and have the courage to visibly 
challenge practice, recognise unconscious bias and encourage 
diversity of experience, ideas and views. We want leaders who 

understand the equality impact of their decision making and 
commit to making a difference to improve equality and 
representation. Our leaders need to be culturally aware and be 

able to support diverse and hybrid teams to work together 
successfully.    

 

 

Therefore, our key areas of focus will be to: 

• Better understand what it’s really like to work here and 

learn about the lived experience in order to lead change 

through creating a safe space to have open and continuing 

conversations. 

 

• Pilot a new Salford wide reverse mentoring programme to 

encourage new and innovative ways to address the barriers 

to race equality. This will be specifically designed to raise 

awareness of racial discrimination and promote changes in 

practices, procedures and systems in support of race 

equality. As this develops we would want to expand this to 

include other protected characteristics 

 

• Further embed equality, diversity and inclusion throughout 

our leadership development offer. This will include all 

leaders across the council committing to attending Salford’s 

Inclusive Leadership Masterclass which includes 

unconscious bias training and undertaking Community 

Impact Assessments to understand equality impact.  

Research suggests that what leaders 

say and do makes up to a 70% 

difference as to whether an individual 
reports feeling included at work.* 

P
age 16



 

11 
 

 

• Appoint a senior leadership representative to act as 

sponsor/champion to each of the council’s staff equality 

groups and attend quarterly staff group meetings to ensure 

key issues are raised directly at a senior level. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 17



 

12 
 

2. Building confidence through 
improving education, 
awareness and training 

We know that improving equality, diversity and inclusion is 

the responsibility of every single person across the 
organisation and we want to build confidence through 
increased awareness and improved knowledge and 
understanding of equality and diversity for every employee to 

better understand each other and Salford’s diverse 
communities. 

We also understand that we need to go beyond basic training 
not only to ensure compliance with the Equality Act 2010 but 

to strengthen our culture through building confidence, trust, 
openness and understanding.  Through investing further in a 
range of education, awareness and training programmes to 

ensure our entire workforce develop a better understanding 
across a range of equality, diversity and inclusion issues and 
are able to see how they can contribute to improvements 
across the council and in the delivery of our services. 

We value the voice of the those with lived experience and 
want to further amplify these voices to improve awareness, 
understanding and look at how we develop allyship and 

encourage everyone to call out behaviour that does not fit 
with our council values. We will also continue our work on 
increasing cultural awareness, acknowledging and celebrating 
awareness events and traditional holidays as a way to 

encourage conversation and increase cultural literacy, 
awareness and acceptance. 

We need to go back to basics with our equality, diversity and 

inclusion training offer for the workforce and ensure that this 
is delivered through a range of different methods to raise 
awareness of unconscious bias, enhance awareness and 

understanding of our diverse workforce and communities and 
promote the value of a diverse and inclusive workplace.  

Therefore, our key areas of focus will be to: 

 Strengthen our engagement, communication, policy and 
practice to further promote our zero-tolerance approach 

across all areas of the organisation to any form of 
discrimination, bullying, harassment, and victimisation. 

 
 Work with a range of stakeholders across the council to 

review our resources, policies, practice and training for 
dealing with hate crime, violence and aggression at work to 
ensure this is fit for purpose.  

 
 Review our offer around education, awareness and training 

on equality, diversity and inclusion to ensure staff receive 

appropriate equality training to challenge unconscious bias 
and enhance awareness and understanding of Salford’s 
diverse communities and the value of a diverse and 

inclusive workforce. 
 

 Increase awareness of cultural diversity across the 
workforce by recognising and celebrating key dates, 

P
age 18



 

13 
 

traditional holidays festivals and food in a range of different 
ways. This will be done through the working with our 

workforce including staff groups,  trade union 
representatives and other stakeholders to develop our 
Council workforce inclusion calendar.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

We want to build the knowledge and 
confidence of every member of staff to 
better understand each other and 
Salford’s diverse communities. 

P
age 19



 

14 
 

3. Improving workforce 
intelligence, insight & 
representation 

 
Throughout our recent engagement with the local community 
and voluntary organisations, we understand that more work 

needs to be done in Salford to increase the diversity of 
representation in any place where decisions are taken in 
Salford.  
 

We also heard about the importance of ensuring staff in 
public sector organisations such as the council need to have a 
better understanding about the needs of Salford’s diverse 

communities to ensure that they have good insight into the 
different needs that people and communities may have as a 
result of their protected characteristics. We want our staff to 

feel comfortable speaking to and serving a diverse population 
and see this as an integral part of their role.  

 

We know that we have areas of the workforce which do not 
represent the diversity of the city. Whilst we acknowledge 
there are limitations with our data we know that over 14% of 

the population of Salford are from an ethnic minority 
background which compares to just 8% of the workforce who 
disclosed this information. We also know that 22.4% of 
Salford’s working age population have a physical or mental 

disability which compares to just 6% of our workforce who 
have disclosed a disability.  
 

Our aim is to have a workforce which is more representative 
of the Salford population and where our residents can see 

themselves represented through the services we provide. 
Improving our workforce information will enable targeted 
actions to address this under-representation in the short, 

medium and long-term.    
 
We therefore want to change our approach to workforce 

equality monitoring, starting with what we know through data 
but also what people are telling us about working for Salford.   
This will help us to understand what actions we need to take 
to address areas of underrepresentation, barriers that people 

face and be more inclusive. These will become our workforce 
priorities. 

 

We know that the equality information we have on our 
workforce is incomplete and therefore one of our urgent 
priorities is to take action to address this. For some protected 

characteristics we have up to 30% of records which are either 
unknown or prefer not to say. Whilst this information will 
always remain voluntary it is important that we understand 

the reasons for incomplete information and take appropriate 
actions to ensure that our workforce understand why we 
collect information and more importantly what we do and do 

not do with it.  
 

Whilst we already routinely collate and report equality 
workforce data we need to review, strengthen and be more 

visible and transparent about this to make sure it is not only 
accurate information but provides true insight to our 

P
age 20



 

15 
 

workforce, our key challenges and informs the workforce 
strategy, priorities and actions.  

 
Therefore, our key areas of focus will be to: 

 

 Undertake a full review and strengthen our current 
workforce information including monitoring and reporting 
of recruitment, selection, induction, development and 

progression information within the organisation to ensure 
this is effective, consistent and as comprehensive as 
possible. 

 

 Work closely with our staff groups and trade union 
representatives and undertake regular engagement and 
feedback with the workforce about what it feels like to 

work for Salford Council. This will provide valuable 
qualitative insight into key issues so actions to address 
these can be agreed and progress monitored.   

 
 Take actions to ensure our workforce is more reflective of 

the local communities we serve such as expanding and 

enhancing our recruitment outreach to attract more diverse 

talent (particularly in senior leadership positions) and put in 

place effective workforce data monitoring to help identify 

areas for improvement in recruitment and selection 

practices. 

 

 Take actions to ensure opportunities to develop and 

progress are available to everyone across the organisation.  

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

We want our staff to feel 
comfortable speaking to and serving 
a diverse population and see this as 
an integral part of their role. 

 

P
age 21



 

16 
 

4. Reducing the gender and 
ethnicity pay gaps 

Organisations with more than 250 employees are legally 
required each year to publish their gender pay gap 

information. Gender pay is different to equal pay as it shows 
the difference between average hourly earnings between men 
and women in an organisation and is largely affected by the 
composition of the workforce.  

We know the current gender pay gap in the UK stands at 
17.3% and the reasons for this gap are complex including 
economic, cultural, societal and educational factors: The 

Chartered Institute of Personnel and Development suggest 
that some of the reasons include: 

 A lack of flexible working options 
 Women being the main providers of unpaid caring 

responsibilities 

 Occupational segregation 
 The undervaluing of women’s work 
 Pay discrimination. 

In the council, we are pleased that for the last four years of 

reporting our gender pay gap this has decreased each year 
and now stands at 11.3% which is below the national 
average. Whilst we have made progress, we acknowledge 

that there is much more to do to reduce this further and are 

therefore committed to prioritising actions to address gender 
equality across service areas. 

There is currently no legal requirement to publish details of 

our ethnicity pay gap, but we are committed to tackling 
workforce racial equality and have signed up to the Greater 
Manchester Workforce Race Equality Standard. We therefore 

want to voluntarily report the Council’s ethnicity pay gap and 
commit to prioritise actions to address racial equality across 
the Council.  

Therefore, our focus will be to: 

 Set up a working group with senior overight to investigate 

key causes of ethnicity and gender pay disparity across 

council and identify and lead key actions to reduce the 

council’s pay gaps.  

 
 Explore the option of setting up a women’s staff 

network/group to understand some of the key issues facing 
women working at the council and strengthen our response 
as an employer to these issues.  

 

 Review selection practices to focus on raising awareness of 

unconscious bias and diversity of selection panels in both 

internal and external recruitment. 

 

 Focus on areas of occupational segregation within the 

organisation and work with managers to target effective 

actions to achieve an improved gender balance.  

P
age 22



 

17 
 

 

 Continue to promote job vacancies as flexible using 

#happytotalkflexible and embed flexible working 

arrangements across the organisation at all levels.   
 

 Improve our information to report on pay gaps across other 

protected characteristics.  

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

In the council, we are pleased that 
for the last four years of reporting 

our gender pay gap this has 
decreased each year and now 

stands at 11.3% which is below 
the national average 

 

P
age 23



T
his page is intentionally left blank



PUBLIC INTEREST TEST – CHECKLIST 

Schedule 12A Local Government Act 1972 

 
Name of Report: SENIOR LEADERSHIP APPOINTMENTS AND REMUNERATION 

 
Committee: Workforce Panel 
 

Date: Tuesday 28th September 
 

Category of exemption applied (from list below):  
1. Information relating to any individual. 
2. Information which is likely to reveal the identity of any individual. 

 

1 Information relating to any individual 

2 Information which is likely to reveal the identity of any individual 

3 Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular 
person (including the Authority holding that information) 

4 Information relating to any consultations or negotiations, or contemplated 

consultations or negotiations, in connection with any labour relations matter 
arising between the Council, or a Government minister, and any employees 

of, or office holders under, the Council. 

5 Information in respect of which a claim to legal professional privilege could 
be maintained in legal proceedings. 

6 Information which reveals that the Council proposes: 

 
a) give under any enactment a notice under or by virtue of which 
requirements are imposed on a person (including an organisation) or 

 
b) to make an order or direction under any enactment 

7 Information relating to any action taken or to be taken in connection with the 

prevention, investigation or prosecution of crime. 
 

Standards Committee Only 

7a Information which is subject to any obligation of confidentiality 

7b Information which relates in any way to matters concerning national security 

7c The deliberations of a standards committee or of sub-committee of a 

standards committee established under the Provisions of part III of the Local 
government Act 2000 in reaching any finding on any matter referred under 
the provisions of section 64(2) of 71(2) of the Local Government Act 2000 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

Page 25

Agenda Item 6



Public Interest Test Questionnaire 
 

This is not a definitive list. However, it does provide a series of questions that you 
should ask yourself when recommending confidentiality. 
 

FACTORS WHICH SUPPORT DISCLOSING INFORMATION 
Will disclosure help people to understand and participate in public 
debate about current issues? 
 

 

NO 

Will disclosure help people to understand why the Council has taken 
certain decisions?  

 
 

NO 

Will disclosure give the public information about the personal 

probity (or otherwise) of elected members or council staff? 
 
 

NO 

Will disclosure encourage greater competition and better value for money 

for council taxpayers?  
 

 

NO 

Will disclosure allow individuals and companies to understand 
decisions made by the Council that have affected their lives?  
 

 

NO 

Is the information about factors that affect public health and public 
safety? (NB you should be careful if considering the release of 

information which might adversely affect public health and safety)   
 

 

NO 

Will disclosure reveal incompetent, illegal or unethical decision-
making or examples of malpractice? 
 

 

NO 

Will disclosure reveal that such maladministration has not in fact 
occurred? 

 
 

NO 

 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 

Page 26



 

FACTORS WHICH SUPPORT WITHHOLDING INFORMATION 
Will disclosure damage the Council’s interests without giving the 
public any useful information? 

 
 

NO 

Will disclosure damage another organisation or person’s interests, 

without giving the public any useful information?  
 
 

Yes 

Will disclosure give an unfair, prejudicial or inaccurate view of a 

situation? 
 

 

NO 

Will disclosure prevent the effective delivery of services without giving the 
public useful information?  

 
 

NO 

Will disclosure put the health and safety of any group or individuals 
at risk?  

 
 

NO 

Is there a clear and coherent reason why the community in general would 

benefit more from information being withheld?  
 
  

NO 

 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 

Page 27



Justification of decision 

(Please provide details of reasoning) 

 

The contents of this report relate to the application of a market enhancement to a 
specific role within the council.  There are currently two posts one of which is 
occupied, publication of the report would enable the identification of the individual 

currently employed and their current salary details. 

 

The report also details specific proposals in relation to the review of a single job role 
with the individual employee being clearly identifiable together with the direct impact 

of the changes on them personally. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Other documents attached?  

 
Name of Author: Samantha Betts 

 
Title: Assistant Director HR & OD 
 

Date: 20th September 2021 
 

Page 28



Document is Restricted

Page 29

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the Meeting held on 25th May 2021
	4 Workforce Equality, Diversity and Inclusion Strategy
	04 - EDI Workforce Strategy Draft Final

	6 Senior Leadership Appointments and Remuneration
	06 - Part 2 - Report for Workforce Panel September 2021 Final_


